~ >,
4 o ) UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
2 M 8 REGION Il
% N 1650 Arch Street

4”4{ an;’o‘ Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

September 7, 2017

BY CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
AND ELECTRONIC MAIL

Hamilton Hackney, Esq.

Dain, Torpy, Le Ray, Wiest & Garner, P.C.
745 Atlantic Avenue, 5™ Floor

Boston, MA 02111

RE:  I/M/O Super Concrete Corporation, Docket No. CWA-03-2017-0024

Mr. Hackney:

Enclosed is a fully executed and filed Consent Agreement and Final Order (“CAFO”) resolving
the referenced matter. Please review the terms and conditions of the CAFO and forward to your

client.

Please feel free to call me with any questions or concerns.

Douglas Frankenthaler
Assistant Regional Counsel

Enclosures

<¥  Printed on 1 00% recycled/recyclable paper with 100% post-consumer fiber and process chlorine free.
Customer Service Hotline: 1-800-438-2474



BEFORE THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

IN THE MATTER OF: Proceeding to Assess Class I
Administrative Penalty Under

Super Concrete Corporation Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act

5001 Fort Totten Drive NE

Washington, DC 20011 Docket No. CWA-03-2017-0024

Respondent CONSENT AGREEMENT

AND FINAL ORDER

ks

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

I.  PRELIMINARY STATEMENT, JURISDICTIONAL AND STATUTORY

AUTHORITY

This Consent Agreement and Final Order (“CAFO”) is entered into by the Director, Water
Protection Division, United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™), Region III
("Complainant”) and Super Concrete Corporation (“Super Concrete” or “Respondent’™)
pursuant to Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act (“CWA”), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and the
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,
Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or
Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. The parties having agreed
to settlement of violations of the Clean Water Act by Respondent, this CAFO simultaneously
commences and concludes this action pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) &

(3).

Respondent is an owner and operator of a concrete aggregate processing facility located at
5001 Fort Totten Drive NE, Washington, DC 20011 (“Facility™).

Respondent’s Facility subject to this CAFO, is subject to CWA National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (“NPDES”), Permit No. DC0000175 (the “Facility Permit”).

Complainant alleges that Respondent has failed to comply with the CWA and its NPDES
permit, including a failure to comply with all monitoring and reporting obligations of the
Facility Permit. The alleged violations of the Facility Permit are identified in Exhibit 1.
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Pursuant to Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(2)(B), as amended by the
Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996 (codified at 28 U.S.C. § 2461) and the subsequent
Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19, the Administrator of
the EPA is authorized after March 15, 2004, to issue an order requiring compliance and/or
assessing administrative penalties against any person who has violated Section 301(a) of the
CWA by failing to obtain an NPDES permit or by discharging a pollutant into a water of the
United States without an NPDES permit issued pursuant to Section 402 in an amount not to
exceed $ 16,000 per day for each violation that occurred before November 2, 2015 and
assessed before August I, 2016 and up to $20,628 per day for each violations that occurred
after November 2, 2015 and was assessed on or after August 1, 2016 up to a total penalty
amount of $257.,848.

The EPA is authorized to issue NPDES permits within the District of Columbia, and issued
the Facility Permit.

I1. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, establishes the NPDES program.

Under Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, EPA and states with EPA-approved NPDES
programs are authorized to issue permits governing the discharge of pollutants from
regulated sources.

Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of any pollutant from
any point source by a person into a water of the United States except in compliance with a
permit issued under the NPDES program pursuant to Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §
1342.

- Section 502(5) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5) defines the term “person” as “an individual,

corporation, partnership, association, State, municipality, commission, or political
subdivision of a State, or any interstate body.”

- Section 502(12) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12) defines the term “discharge of a pollutant”

and the term “discharge of pollutants” as “any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters
from any point source,” or “any addition of any pollutant to the waters of the contiguous
zone or the ocean from any point source other than a vessel or other floating craft.”

. Section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1362(6) defines the term “pollutant™ as “dredged spoil,

solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge. munitions, chemical
wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment,
rock, sand, cellar dirt and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into
water.”
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13;

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

Section 502(14) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14) defines the term “point source™ as “any
discernible, confined and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe, ditch,
channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal
feeding operation, or vessel or other floating craft, from which pollutants are or may be
discharged.”

Section 502(7) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1362(7) defines the term the term “navigable waters”
as “the waters of the United States, including the territorial seas.” See also 40 C.F.R. §
1222,

Pursuant to Section 402(b) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b), EPA administers the NPDES
program in the District of Columbia.

An NPDES Permit is required for industrial discharges, including discharges related to the
Facility. See 33 U.S.C. § 1342, 40 C.F.R. § 122.21.

The Respondent is a “person” as defined by Section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §
1362(5), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2.

Pursuant to its NPDES Permit, Respondent is authorized to discharge pollutants through
point sources into navigable waters.

On or about February 19, 2013, EPA inspected the Facility, and afterwards provided a copy
of EPA’s inspection report to Respondent.

In response to an EPA Show Cause Letter, on or about May 26, 2015, EPA and Respondent
met to discuss the alleged violations.

Following the May 26, 2015 meeting, EPA and Respondent had a number of follow-up
discussions and Respondent provided additional information to EPA concerning its
operations and CWA compliance at the Facility.

Over at least the past five years Respondent has violated the CWA and the Facility Permit by
discharging pollutants in violation of the CWA and its NPDES permit and by failing to
perform the proper monitoring and reporting requirements of the Facility Permit and the
CWA. Exhibit 1 to this CAFO, incorporated by reference, identifies the violations resolved
through this agreement.

. Discharge of pollutants in violation of any effluent standard, prohibition or standard,

including any standard contained in an NPDES permit issued under the CWA is a violation
of Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), which prohibits, among other things, the
discharge of any pollutant in violation of a NPDES permit issued under Section 402 of the
Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, and 40 C.F.R. Part 122.
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24,

25.

26.

27.

31,

s
(R ]

33.

Respondent’s violation of the NPDES Permits constitute violations of Section 301 of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, and subject Respondent to penalties not to exceed $20.628 per day
for each violation, up to a total penalty amount of $257.848

II. CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

In order to resolve the violations described above, and to provide a legal framework for the
payment of a penalty, EPA and Respondent enter into this CAFO. Respondent consents to
issuance of this CAFO and agrees to undertake all actions required by its terms and
conditions. Respondent consents to the assessment of the civil penalty herein and consents to
issuance of the compliance order described herein.

Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual allegations or conclusions of law contained
in Section II, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. Respondent admits the
Jurisdictional allegations contained in Section I, Preliminary Statement, Jurisdictional and
Statutory Authority, and elsewhere in this CAFO, and waives any defenses it might have as
to jurisdiction and venue. Respondent agrees not to contest EPA’s jurisdiction to issue this
CAFO and not to contest EPA’s jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this CAFO.

Respondent hereby expressly waives its right to a hearing, pursuant to Section 309(g)(2)(A).
33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(2)(A), on any issue of law or fact in this matter and consents to issuance
of this CAFO without adjudication, and waives its right to appeal this final order pursuant to
Section 309(g)(8)(A), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(8)(A).

. This CAFO addresses and settles all civil and administrative claims for CWA violations

identified in this CAFO.

. Each party to this action shall pay its own costs and attorney fees.

. The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, and its officers,

principals, directors, successors and assigns.

The parties agree that settlement of this matter prior to the initiation of litigation is in the
public interest and that entry of this CAFO is the most appropriate means of resolving this
matter.

. Pursuant to Section 309(g)(4) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319 (g)(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 22.45(b),

EPA is providing public notice and an opportunity to comment on the CAFO before issuing
the Final Order. In addition, EPA has consulted with the District of Columbia regarding this
action, and will mail a copy of this document to the appropriate DC official.

Based on the foregoing FINDINGS, and having taken into account the factors listed in
Section 309(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), including but not limited to, the nature,
circumstances, extent and gravity of the violation, the Respondent's knowledge, culpability
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and history of violations, the economic benefit to Respondent, the ability of Respondent to
pay the penalty, and other such matters as justice may require, the administrative record; and
under the authority of Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g2)(2)(A), EPA
HEREBY ORDERS AND RESPONDENT HEREBY CONSENTS:

34. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this ORDER, Respondent shall pay a civil
penalty of twenty seven thousand two hundred and fifty dollars ($27.250.00) for the
violations cited herein. This does not constitute a demand as that term is defined in the Equal
Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412. Penalty payment shall be made according to the
following specifications:

a. The payment shall reference Respondent’s name, address and docket number, be made in
U.S. dollars by money order, cashier's or certified check made payable to the "Treasurer,
United States of America", wire transfer, ACH, or on line, and delivered as follows:

i. If by money order, cashier’s or certified check sent by U.S. postal service mail:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197 9000

Contact: Bryson Lehman 513-487-2123

ii. If by money order, cashier’s or certified check sent by private commercial overnight
delivery service:

U.S. Bank

Government Lockbox 979077
U.S. EPA, Fines & Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza

Mail Station SL MO C2 GL
St. Louis, MO 63101

Contact: 314-418-1028
iii. All payments made by check in any currency drawn on banks with no USA branches
shall be addressed for delivery to:

Cincinnati Finance
US EPA, MS NWD
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26 W. M.L. King Drive
Cincinnati, OH 45268 0001

iv. If by electronic wire transfer:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA =021030004

Account No. = 68010727

SWIFT address = FRNYUS33

33 Liberty Street

New York, NY 10045

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read:
“D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”

v. If by ACH (also known as REX or remittance express):

US Treasury REX / Cashlink ACH Receiver

ABA =051036706

Account No.: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency
CTX Format Transaction Code 22 Checking

Physical location of U.S. Treasury facility:
5700 Rivertech Court
Riverdale, MD 20737
Contact: Jesse White 301 887 6548 or REX, 1 866 234 5681
vi. On Line Payment Option:
WWW . PAY.GOV/PAYGOV
Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field. Open and complete the form.
vii. Additional payment guidance is available at:

http://www.epa.gov/ocfo/finservices/make_a_payment.htm

b. A copy of the check or money order or other proof of payment submitted in fulfillment of
the penalty payment requirements of this order shall be sent to the following:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Regional Hearing Clerk (3RC00)
1650 Arch Street



Docket No. CWA-03-2017-0024 7

35.

31,

38.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029
and

Mr. Douglas Frankenthaler (3RC20)
Assistant Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA Region 111

1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

¢. A transmittal message identifying the case name and docket number identified above shall
accompany the remittance and copies of the check or transfer instrument.

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this ORDER, Respondent agrees to certify, in
writing to EPA pursuant to Paragraphs 39 and 40 that it is operating in full compliance with its
NPDES Permit, and that it is complying with all relevant provisions of the CWA at the
Facility. Such certification will be submitted to EPA pursuant to the notification provisions of
this CAFO.

. Upon the effective date of this ORDER, Respondent has implemented and has agreed to

continue to implement the ““Standard Operating Procedure for NPDES Permit Compliance”
or SOP, a compendium of documents which was prepared by Respondent, agreed upon by
EPA and Respondent, and which is identified in Exhibit 2 hereto and incorporated by
reference into this CAFO.

To the extent that the SOP is modified within three hundred and sixty-five (365) days of the
effective date of this CAFO, Respondent agrees that a copy of such modified SOP will be
submitted to EPA along with a document noting the modifications made pursuant to the
notification and submission provisions of this CAFO.

Failure to pay the penalty assessed by this ORDER after its effective date subjects the
Respondent to a collection action under Section 309(g)(9) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §
1319(g)(9). The validity, amount and appropriateness of the penalty are not subject to review
in a collection proceeding. See 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)(4)(A). Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA
is entitled to assess interest on unpaid penalties, and a charge to cover the cost of processing
and handling a delinquent claim. Interest will begin to accrue on this civil penalty if it is not
paid within fifteen days of the date due. Interest will be assessed at the rate of the United
States Treasury tax and loan rate. 40 C.F.R. § 13.11. In addition, a quarterly nonpayment
penalty charge may be assessed on any delinquent debt pursuant to Section 309(g)(9) of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(9). In addition, EPA will assess a $15.00 administrative handling
charge for the administrative handling charge for administrative costs for the first 30 day
period after the payment is due and an additional $15.00 for each subsequent 30 days the
penalty remains due.
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39. All notifications and submissions required by this CAFO, shall be made to:

Mr. Douglas Frankenthaler (3RC20)
Assistant Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA Region II1

1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
Telephone: (215) 8§14-2472

40. All submissions provided pursuant to this Order shall be signed by Respondents and shall
include the following certification:

“I certify that the information contained in or accompanying this submission is true,
accurate and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting
false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations."

IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS

41. This CAFO shall not relieve Respondents of its obligation to comply with all applicable
provisions of federal, state or local law and ordinance, nor shall it be construed to be a ruling
on, or determination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit. This CAFO
does not constitute a waiver, suspension or modification of the requirements of the CWA.

42. This CAFO resolves only the civil claims for the specific violations alleged herein. EPA
reserves the right to commence action against any person, including Respondent, in response
to any condition which EPA determines may present an imminent and substantial
endangerment to the public health, public welfare, or the environment. In addition, this
settlement is subject to all limitations on the scope of resolution and to the reservation of
rights set forth in Section 22.18(c) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice. Further, EPA
reserves any rights and remedies available to it under the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 301

et seq., the regulations promulgated there under, and any other federal laws or regulations for

which EPA has jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this CAFO, following its filing with
the Regional Hearing Clerk.

43. Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed as prohibiting, altering or in any way eliminating
the ability of EPA to seek any other remedies or sanctions available by virtue of
Respondent’s violations of this CAFO or of the statutes and regulations upon which this
CAFO is based or for Respondent’s violation of any applicable provision of law.

44. The penalty described above, shall represent civil penalties assessed by EPA and shall not be
deductible for purposes of Federal taxes.
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45.

46.

47.

48.

This CAFO is conditioned upon the accuracy of the Respondent’s representations to EPA.
EPA reserves the right to institute a new and/or separate action should Respondents fail to
comply with the terms of this CAFO. That right shall be in addition to all other rights and
causes of action, civil or criminal, the EPA may have under law or equity in such event.

The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he or she is fully authorized by
the party represented to enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and to execute and
legally bind Respondent to it.

All of the terms and conditions of this CAFO together comprise one agreement, and each of
the terms and conditions is in consideration of all of the other terms and conditions. In the
event that this CAFO, or one or more of its terms and conditions, is held invalid, or is not
executed by all of the signatories in identical form, or is not approved in such identical form
by the Regional Administrator or his designee, then the entire CAFO shall be null and void.

V. EFFECTIVE DATE

This CAFO will be issued after a forty (40) day comment period, execution by an authorized
representative of the EPA and filing with the regional hearing clerk. It will become final and
effective 30 days after issuance.

FOR RESPONDENT

By:

Name: ST EPrHEN WA\Q\B
Title: _ MWC  PRESVAENT
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SO ORDERED in Super Concrete Corporation, Dkt. No. CWA-03-2017-0024, pursuant to 33

U.S.C. § 1319(g) and 40 C.E.R. Pat 22,
this §Zl day of fp/ﬁm e . 2017.

i

Ls (B R

ominique Lueckenhoff, Acting Dirdctor
Water Protection Division
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Standard Operating Procedure for NPDES Permit Compliance



MAR Water Sampling Training Checklist

Site, o Date: . Trainer:

FParticipants:

L. Introduction - Explain why we are making the changes:
Mecet ngs with VADEQ inspectors - suggested updates to program
Discussions with Phase | abs resulied in additional quality control (QC) in our sampling program to
ersura the guahty of cyr samples and sample resylis

L

Envoy Site Procedure
Show them how to access the Envoy sie procedure
Frovide a line by line discussion -- Emphasize the importance of knowing their specific NPDES
imits and reporting of exceedances,
Stress that if cuttalls are added or deleted frum 4 site, Lisa Hunt and | need to know before
any ctanges are made or anhy new outfall is constructed (this applies primarily to sand and
gravei mines)

3 Water Sampling Procedure (the how o take a sample and do a pH test instructions).
Reassure them it 1s not as compiex or tough as it looks. Cover everything on the sheet.
Stress the need to comply with holding times and temperatures. Make note if the site(s) wiil
use a refrigerater to store samples or put them straight into a cooler.

Show them the new thermometers and explain how the calibration certificates will be
documented. Explain thermometers will be replaced annually for testing and fridge and that
there is an action plan entered in for ther site so they can call me to order a new
thermometer before the old one expires

Check the buffers they have ¢n hand to make sure they are not expired and restock as
needed. Show them where the ot number and exporation dates are,

show them sample labels and Integrity seals.

Review vxactly how to propery comprete a chain of custedy form

Explaimm how to abtain sample bottles and roolers.

4. Waler Testing Log Book
Roview the pid testing log turm and give them their new books.
instruct them 1o archive and keep their old water testing log books in the site's
Lovirgnmental Files, Make 4 note on where this 1s located.

5. Hands-on Training - Go out to the gutfall and have each person physically cormnplete:
Properly collecting water samples,
Joing a pH test - make sure they understand how aperdte device
Sets up a tuffer solution and Lhe cup of tap water for rinsing tip the probe Lp,
Knows how to take a cahibration reading and how to take 3 medsurement fe.g. what buttons
to push and the techrique - 2 minutes swirted with probe and thermometer in buffor packet)
Storing a ph meter (keep bullb wel and vertical in a coffee mug or hanging on a wall)
Emphasize that if a bulb dries out, they must seak the up In tap water for at least 30
minutes before trying to do a cahibration and test a sample.
Packaging samples for shipping
Filiing out labels and chamn of custody

6 Demonstration of Competency
Feview the new Demonstration of Competency form
Observe each person complete four full sets of pH calibrations with fresh water samples each rme.
Complete the Certfication of Lninal Competence form. Make a copy for Lhe site Environmental File and
return the onginal to Greenbet aleng with this site training choeckhs:

LA 23 2005510
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version 3.1, May. 7, 2013, SIH

Aggregate Industries Mid-Atlantic Region

Wwater Sampling Methods

The following procedure details how water samples are collected and tested alnd/or .
submitted for analysis in order 10 comply with National Pollutent Discharge Elimination

System (NPDES) permits.

Operational personnel are responsible for quality of water discharged from their facihities
and shall ensure that discharged water meets local, stale and federal requirements. The
parameters a site must test and the frequency are gpecified 1n the site water permit.

Exceedances

If a sample s outside of comphance imits then immediate Measures must be undertaken to
halt discharge (if possible) and correct the problem. Continued discharge of non-compliant
waters, without mitigation cfforts is @ serous permit violation.

Dperational personnel must notify the Environmental Department as soon as possible to
report the problem. The environmental department shall notify appropriate agencies 1N
accordance with permit requirements. The Environmental Department shall advise and
assist operational personnel on mitigation efforts. additional walter samples will likely te
rerquired

water Tester pemonstration of Capability

All personne! responsible for water testing must perform an initial Demonstration of
Capability before the Regional Environmental Advisor or other designated qualified
individual. Signed Certifications must be recorded in Envoy and kept with the water
sampling logs.

sampling Frequency

All samples shall be collected at the frequency the site discharge permit requires.
For monthly or quarterly sampling, samples should be collected 1n the first week of a month
(if discharge occurs) Lo allow return of lab results and retesting within the same month if
there are problems. If discharge 1s intermittent, samples shall be collected during the first
day of flow.



Version 3.1, May, 7, 2013, SIH
Sampling Parameters

1. Total Suspended Solids:

Materials:
Two - Liter plastic boltles, cooler of jce, labels, and Chain-of-Custody Form

Procedures:

1. Once sampling event has been determined, schedule pick-up with the laboratory.
Sample must get Lo the lab and be analyzed within 7 days of collection.

Have a cooler with an ice balh ready for holding and shipping the samples,

3. Ensure the discharging water is representative for normal discharging conditions.

d tthe outfall, rinse bottle three times with flowing water before collecting the
sample.

5. Hold the rinsed bottle al a tross sechion of the outfall and collect at least 1-liter

for the sample,

0. Repeat Steps 4-5 with the second bottle. Label this bottle 'QC" and the autfall

number If the sile has multiple outfalls anty one outfall needs to have a repeat

QC sample.

Labeled the bottles with the sample lo be tested, sample number, date, and time

of sample. Pyt Integrity tape over cap.

Flace the boltles in the coonler and prepare cooles tor shipping or refrigerated.

Sample must be chilled Lo between 4 'C (39 F) pul above 0 C (32 r).

L. Compiete the Chamn-of-Custody ana affix 1 Lo the cooler to be shipped along
with the sample. s form includes: name of sampier, ime/date sampled,
material sampled, location 1D, and the date/time the sample s released to
laboratory

~J

i G

2., Settleable Solids:

Do not collect samples on a Friday as they must be analyzed within 48 hrs.

Materials:
e D-Liter plastic bottles, Cooler of ice, labels, Cham-of-Cuslody Form

Procedures:

Unce samping event has been determined, schedule prck-up with the laboralory.

Sample must gel to the lap and be tested within 48 hours of collection.

2. Have a cooler with an ice bath ready for holding and shipping the samples

3. Ensure the discharging water 1s representative for normal discharging conditions.

Al lhe outfall, rinse bottle three times with flowing water before collecting

sample.

Hald the rinsed boltle at a cross section of the outfall ana collect at least 1-liter

for the sample.

£ Kepeat Steps 4-5 wilh the seeond bottle.

7. labeled the bottles wilh {he sample to be testea, sample numbetr, date, and timwe

al sample Pyt mtegrity Ltape over can

Y. Place the bottles n the cocler and prepare cooler for shipping.

3. Sample must be chilied to between 4 'C (39 'F) but above O G 32 EY

. Ccomplete thie Chamn-of-Custody and affix it to the ceoler to be shipped along wilh
tre sample. This form includes, name of sampler, time/date sampled, matenal
sampled, location 1D, and the date/time the sample is released to laboratory

n
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3. pH:

iReference: Standard Methods 4500 p' 22 " Ed 2011.)

Materials:

pH o Tester

pouches of Buffer Solution 4, 7, and 10 (you will need pH 7 from two different 1ots]
Thermometer with certificate of calibration

Spray botue with distilied or tap water

rlean contamner for sample collection (buckel, cup. bottle}

Procedures:

!

Visually inspect clectrode Lo ensure proper working conditions {NO chicnide
precipitate, scratches, deterigration, elc.)

Cahbrate the pH tester using Buffer Solutions 4, 7. and 10. Results should be

L 0.1 units of known value. Sample must be measured within 15 minutes of
cohection time

.  Hemove cap from pH Llester.

. Press On/Off button Lo gwitch Lester oh.

«  Open pouch of pH 4 Buffer insert a thermometer, and cip tne pH tester directly in
pauch about 2-3 cm.

. Press the CAL button on the tester to enter the calibration mode, The 'CAL’ indicatar
will be shown on the screcn. The upper display will show the measured reading
based on the last calibration while the fower display will indicate the pH standard
buffer solution.

« Allow 2 minutes for the tester reading Lo stabilize before pressing the HOLD/ENT to
confirm the first calibration point. The upper display will be calibrated to the pH
standard buffer solution and the lower display will then be toggling in between
readings of the next pH standard buffer solution.

. Record results of temperature and pH reading on data collection sheet.

.  Rinse the electrode with water from the spray bottle. Repeat with pH 7.

. Rinse the electrode with water from the spray bottle. Repeat with pH10.

Test Sample:

. At the outfall, rinse the collection container three times vith flowing water before
collecting sample.

. Collect a sampie and the cip the eleclrode about 2-3 ¢m inte the water. Gentiy swirl
the sample while the probe s in the water

. Once the pH reading has stabihzed, press the HOLD/ENT bottom 0 freeze the

reading
. Dnter the pH reading on Lo the data sheet.
.  Tokw a termnperature reading of the sample using the thermometer. Once e

temperature has Jtabilized, entec it en the data collection sheet

inse probe and test probe accuracy by testing pH 7.0 puffer again. You must use P!
7 O sclution with a different 101 numeper than the first test. [f you do not get @ reading
within pH 6.9 and pH 7.1 repeat the entire calibration process. 1f you sull do not get a
reading withhn the range, lhereis @ problem with the meter. Contact the Environmental
Department for a replacement.

rar quality contro! purposes Repeat pH test with a second sample ccllected from
the same outfall collected at least 15 minutes after the first sample. This second
sample should be recordea as QC’ plus the outfall number in the log book. if
the site has multple outfalls, ttis QC test 1% enly regquired for one outfall at the
sile
Version 3.1, May. 7, 2013, SIH



Rinse the clectrode witn water from the spra

¥ boltle and put 0.5 inches of water in

the cap of the tesler for storage. The electrode must remain moist while not
inuse. PH Probes should be stored vertically, not on their sides, to ensure the
nrobe stays wet A bl ol sponge or a cotton ball can be placed in the cap to help

ensurg ot Slayvs monst

4. Dil and Grease:

Materials:

Clean container for samuyle
Three 1-Liter glas

Procedures:

1

s

4

toliection (bucket, cup, bottle)
s bottles pre-packed with Freservalive provided by Laboratory

Once sampling event has been determimed, schedule pick-up with the lab.

Sample must be tesled within 28 days of collection,

Mave a cocler with an ice hath ready for holding and shipping the samples.

Ensure the discharging water 1s representative for normal discharging conditions.
Hold glass lab botties at a cross section of the outfall and collect sample without
splashing out the preservative. Do not use a Cup or bucket to collect the sample -
Sample must go directly from the outfall into the glass lab bottle.

Labeled the botties with the sample to be testec, sample number, date, and time

of sample. Put INtegrity tape over cap.

Place the bottles in the cooler and prepare cooler for shipping.

Sample must be chilled to between 4 °C (39 “F) but above 0 "C (32 °F).

Complete the Chanr1~of-Cuslody and affix it to the cooler Lo be shipped along with
the cample. This form mcludes, name of sampler, time/date sampled, material
sampled, location ID, and the date/lime the sample is released to laboratory.

5. Biolagical Oxygen Demand:

Do not collect samples on Monday mornings or Fridays. These samples require a §
day incubation period and can not be tested on the weekends.

Materials:

Twa 1-Liter plastic botties, Cooler of ice,

Procedures:
Crce sampling event has been determined, schedule pick-up with the Lab.
Sampie must be sent to the lab immediately so testing can be started within 48

1

P

hours of collection,

Chain-of-Custody Form

Have a cooler with an ice bath ready for holding and shipping the samples.
Ensure the discharging walter is representative for normal discharging conditions.
At the outfall, rinse bottle three times with flowing water before collecting

samiple.

Hold the ninsed Loltle al o cross section of the outfall and collecl at least 1-lter

for the sample.
Repeat Steps 4-5 with Lhe second bottle.

Labeled the bottles with the sampic te be tested, sample number, date, and tune

of sample. Pul integrity tape aver cap

Hlace the bottles in the cooler and prepare cooler for shipping
fampie must be chilled to between 4 °C {39 “F) but above O “°C {32 ‘F).
Complete the Cham-of-Custody and affix it to the cooler to be shipped along
with the sample  This form includes, name of sempler, me/date sampled,

mater:al sarnpled, location 11, and the date
laboratory

time the sample 1s released to

Version 3.1, May. 7, 2013, STH



6. Total Recoverable Iron

Materials:

Ciean contamner for sample collecnon (buckel, Lup, pottie)

e 250 ml HDPE plastic bottles pre: packed with mtric acid (50% concentration)
preservative provided by Laboralory

safety Note: Open bottie in a well-ventilated ares. [{ bottle has been stored for more
than a menth you may nolice yellowing of the plastic and a smoky vapor coming from the
bottle when opened - [lq___rlol__irf._l_ta_!g__mg_ fumes as they are COrrOSIVE.

procedures:

1. Once sampling event has been determined, cchedule pick-up with the lab.
sample must be tested within 6 months of collection.

2 Ensure the discharging water is representative for normal discharging conditions.

3 wear goggles and acid proof gloves when collecting the sampie.

4 ilolg lab bottles at a cross section of the outfall and collect sample without
splashing out the preservalive Do not use a cup or bucket to collect the sample
Sample must go directly from the outfall into the plastic lab bottle.

5 Labeled the battles with the sample to be tested, sample number, dateg, and ume
of sample. Putl integrity tape over cap

¢. Bottles do not require cogling, but they can be placed in the cooler with the ather
sample bottles for shupping.

;7 Complete the Chain-of-Custody and affix 1t to the cooler to be shipped along with
tne sample. This form includes, name of sampler, tme/date sampled, maternal
sampled, location 1D, and the date/ume the sample 1s released to laboratory.

4. Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH):

Materials:
Clean container for sample collection (bucket, cup, bottle)
Two 1 Liter amber glass bottles

Procedures:

1. Once sampling event has been determined, schedule pick-up wilth the lab.

gample must be tested within 7 days of collection.

Have a cooler with an ice bath ready for holding and shipping the samples.

Ensure the discharging water 15 representative for normal discharging condilions.

Hold glass lab bottles at a cross section of the outfall and collect sample without

splashing cut the preservative. DO not use a cup or buckel to collect Lhe sample -

sample must go directly from the outfall into the glass lab bottle.

5 . abeled the bottles with the sample Lo be tested, sampie number, date, and Limne
of scample. Put integnty tape over cap

& Place the bottles in the cooler and prepare couler for shipping.

5 Sample must be chillea to between 4 ‘C (39 “F) butl above 0°C (%2 °F).

s Complete the Chain-of-Custedy and affix 1L to the cooler Lo he shipped along with
the sample. This form ncludes, name of sampler, time/date sampled, material
sampled, location 10, and the date/time the sample 1S released to laboratory.

PSR VIR
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Thermometer Note: All thermometers must be NIST traceable with a current certificate
(certificates are gond for one yearonly). Label thermometer or water testing log book with
the certificate expiration date. Certificates must be filed with the water testing log books
Moty the Environmental Department for a replacement, before the certification expires.

Buffer Solution Note: Buffer solutions should be stored n doors and protected from
excessive heat or freezing. Buffer solutions should not te used if they are past ther
expiration date as marked on the box.

Refrigeration Note: |f sdmples are kept in a refrigerator for any period of time, the
refrigerator must be equipped with an NIST certified thermometer with a current cerlificate.
The temperature reading must be take and recorded in the lag book when the samples are

placed in the refrigerator and when they are removed.

Flow Measurement Note: Flow can be measured by: 1) Recording the pump capacity
(¢.g gallons per minute) also record the number of hours the pumps ran that day to get Lhe
lotal discharge; 2) Recording the Lime it Lakes te fill a known volume (e.qg. gallons per
minute); 3) Using a flow meter: 4) Other melhod approved by the Environmental
Department faor special circumstances,

Record Keeping and Reporting:

~  The Site Fnvironmental Representalive, or other persan approved for water sampling
oy the Environmental Department, must keep a logbook of the sampling date and
tme, pH calibrations, and pH readings and sample temperature.

-~ The water sampling log book must be kept on-site and available for inspection for al
least five (5) years.

- Laboratory testing results are sent Lo the site representative and the Enviranmental
Department. Bes.u_i_t__s_.r‘r_u_f__;;.L_p.t:&revmwgd_t.?y.g_a.Ch_ upon receipt lo determine if
parameters do or do not exceed pernut imits. If there is an exceedance, prompt
noufication and reporting to regulatory authorities 1s required

- The Envirunmental Department shall track waler analysis and results for all facilities
covered under a NPOES permit.

- The Environmental Department shall prepare the Oischarge Manmitoring Reports and
forward to the appropnate agencios,



_Version 3.3

Status: Published Version: 33

Categories: Environment

Required for these Roles: RMC Plant Mgr. Site Representalive Environment Water Sampler
Required for Work in these Areas:

Distributed to these people in Dashboard/Documents: Regional Environmental Advisor

Details
Fort Totten Water Sampling Procedure

Under the Fart Totten NPDES Permil DCO00D175. waler testing and monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports
{(DMRs) ere required DMR reporting intervals are from the 6th of the receding month to the 5th of the current
month (for example, all samples collected from March 6th to April 5th are to be submitted for the March DMR
report) All Water Testing Log pages for that interval are to be submitted to the regional Environmental AGvisor.

DMR reports are 1o be submitted to EPA and the DC DOE by the 15th of the following month.
Qutfall: The site has one active outfall - 004a
Frequency of Testing: Water samples must be collected each day that a discharge occurs

parameters: Flow (measured) Monihly Avg and Daily Max (gpm - gallons per minute)
Daily Total Galions Discharged Needed 10 calculate TSS loadings

pH Limit 8 0-8.5 Standard Units (SU)

161al Suspended Solids (TSS) Limit Concentration Avg 234 ma/l Max 46 8 mg/!

L oading Avg 33 Ibs /day Max 66 lbs /day

Ol & Grease Limil' Avg. 10 mg/l Max 15 mg/l

BOD - no limit, just measure

Follow the attached Water sampling Procedure for collecting, testing, packaging, shipping and
documenting water samples. On-site and laboratory testing procedures must conform to 40 CFR Part 136
and subsequent updates

Any individual collecling waler samples for DMR reporting purposes must perform and complete Water Tester
Demonstration of Capability traiming.

Laboratory Report Review: Laboratory analyses are conducted by Phase Separation Sciences The
jaboratory will email analytical results to the site Water Sampler and 1o the regional Environmental Advisor
Reports are 1o be reviewed upon receipt to verify that test resuits for 158, BOD and Qil & Grease are within
permit imits

Exceedances

If a sample 1s oulside of compliance limits (in-line pH or 155 meter readings) ensule the diverter vailve I1s
recirculating the water back into the water treatment unit pits Continued discharge of non-comphant waters
sithout mitigation efforts 1s 2 serigus permit vioiation If a laboratory repert1s ceturned with an analytical
parameter outside of permit imits (1TSS, Oil & Grease) nalt further off-site discharges until a complete



Inspection and repair of the treatment unit and/or meters is completed Document repairs in the Daily
Environmental Log

samples will iikely be required

Other Restrictions: Water shall not be discharged in amounts or combinations that do any of the following

1 Has material that settles out to form objectionable deposits:

2 Has floating debris, scum_ oil or other malter that creates a nuisance,

3 Produces objectionable odor, color. taste or turbidity;

4 Causes injury to, is toxic to. or produces adverse physiological or behavioral changes in humans, plants or
animals,

5 Produces undesirable or nuisance aquatic life or results in the dominance of nuisance species. or

& Impairs the biological community that naturally occurs in the walers or depends upon the waters for s

survival and propagation

Additional Reporting: The Environmental Department shall submit an annual summary of the DMR data to
US EPA Region Il and the NOAA National Marine Fisheries Service by February 15th of each year

Record Retention: Water Testing Logs. laboratory analytical resuits. flow records, and treatment unit
calibration and mainlenance records must be retained for a minimum of 5 years per Aggregate Indusltries

pehcy

b #
¥ Walter Sampler Inilial Lemaonstration

Site: MA-Fort Totten RMC
Created: 19-May-2015 09:58 by Sharon HOGAN
Last Updated: 19-May-2015 10:52 by Sharon HOGAN



Categories: Environment
Required for these Roles: Regional Environmental Advisor, RMC Ops Mgr. RMC Plant Mgr. Site
Representative Environment, Water Sampler

This procedure is to be used to prepare the site to manage excess water, particularly when heavy rains
or hurricanes are forecast that could require handling of large amounts of storm water on site that may
test the site's storm water containment ca pacity.

Objective:
. Ensure no untreated process waler 1s discharged from the site
. Ensure water does not overtop the perimeter containment wall

Procedures:

1 Routine Water Management - Rain water runoff from the Fert Tolten site 1s to be colle cted by gravity flow
or pumping in washpis. sediment iraps. cistern, water storage basin, waler storage pits and the lower yard
This allows harvesting of the rain water for plant and site operations such as truck washing and nnsing. plant
water and to fill the water truck for dust suppression

Water levels in site catchements and lower yard are 1o be monitored daily by a Plant Manager and/or Area
Manager |f water levels are within two feet of the top of the perimeter wall 10 the soulheast corner wealher
forecasts and expected water consumption shall be monitored daily to determine if water treatment and
discharge is needed 10 maintain the minimum freeboard

Minimum Freeboard: The water level in the lower yard shall be kept at least one foot below the top of the
perimeter retaining wall in the sputh east corner {except under active hurricane conditions - see step 3
below)

2 Pre-Storm Management - When heavy rains or hurricanes are forecast to potentially impact the site,
mmediate steps are to be taken to ensure that the washpits, sediment traps. cistern. water storage basin,
water storage pits and the lower yard flood area have maximum storage capacity to collect the expected
volume of storm water These steps include

. Treatment and discharge of water stored on sité 10 increase water storage capacity
.  Removal of sediment and clean out of pits and basins 10 maximize water storage capacity.

« Inspection and testing of water treatment units. 1opping off of the acid treatment tanks. and laying In 30-
gallon acid drums and replacement filtration bags for the backup unit prior to the slarm

. Arrangements for around-the-clock staffing of the faciity to manage the expected storm water and
operate the reatment units if it 1s necessary ang safe to do sO

. Preparnngthe generator 1o gerve as a back up power supply to the treatment units
. Notes on storm preparation activity should be recorded in the Daily inspection Log

. Coordinate with the Enviropmental Department on preparations and site status



2 Storm Management - During the storm. moniter waler levels in storage areas and adjust activities as
needed to control the situation without jeopardizing worker safety Options include
* Continuous 24-hour treatment and discharge of storm water

» Use of the backup treatment unit for additional treatment capacity

= Providing haok up to the on-site generator to run treatment units and pumps if the power goes out
* Monitoring water levels in the lower yard

* Storage of excess water in mixer truck drums

= Construction of lemporary dikes made of waste concrete and solids to block storage bays to contain
excess water

4 Dealing with Uncontrolled Discha rges - If storm intensity or worker safely protection results in a concern
that continued rainfall will cause the lower yard containment wall to overtop, the following measures are to be

laken

« Notify the regional VP/GM and the Environmental Advisor as soon as possible so that EPA Region il
ard DC Department of Environmental Protection can be alerted

» Ifitis safe and possible to do so. collect a water sample of the overtlow water for pH testing and send
samples to the laboratory for the standard analytical tests

» If an overtopping event occurs, document the onset and cessation of the event and an estimate of the
total gallons released

+ Continue treating and discharging water through the outfall if possible to lower water levels as quickly
as possible

«  Document actions taken before, during and after the incident and work with the Environmental
Department on reporting to the regulatory agencies

Site: MA-Fort Totten RMC
Owner:: Sharon HOGAN
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that the original and one copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and
Final Order (“CAFO™), resolving /M/O Super Concrete Corporation, Docket No. CWA-03-

2017-0024, has been filed with the EPA Region III Regional Hearing Clerk and that I caused

true and correct copies of the CAFO to be sent via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested and
electronic mail to:

Hamilton Hackney, Esq.
Dain, Torpy, Le Ray, Wiest & Garner, P.C.
745 Atlantic Avenue, 5™ Floor
Boston, MA 02111

Pouglas Frankenthaler
Assistant Regional Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, Region II]



